
RFP 2015-024 

 1 

CITY OF GAINESVILLE/GAINESVILLE REGIONAL UTILITIES 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 2015-024 

 
TRANSPORTATION AND BENEFICIAL REUSE OR DISPOSAL OF DEWATERED 

BIOSOLIDS  
 
DATE:  January 28, 2015  DUE DATE: February 5, 2015 @ 2:00 p.m.  
 
NOTE: This addendum has been issued only to all the holders of record of the 

Specifications.  The original Specifications remain in full force and effect except 
as revised by the following changes which shall take precedence over anything 
to the contrary.  

 
The mandatory pre-proposal meeting was held January 21, 2015 at 10:30 a.m. at the GRU 
Administration building. “ATTACHMENT A” contains the Power Point Presentation and 
“ATTACHMENT B” is the sign-in sheets. 
 
PRE-PROPOSAL QUESTIONS: 
 
1. Does the tipping fee need to be included in the pricing?       

 

Yes.  

  

2. Please provide clarification on GRU’s choice of contract duration?   

 

GRU will review the 5, 10 and 20 year proposals and will make a decision based on 

what is best for GRU and its customers. 

 

3. Can GRU meet Vector Attraction Requirements?   

 

GRU will only consistently meet Pathogen Reduction as described in the RFP.   

 

4. Do partially digested biosolids still make the 20% biosolids cake?  

 

Yes, GRU anticipates producing biosolids at approximately 20% total solids cake.  As 

described in the RFP, pricing is to be based on a $/WT basis. 

 

5. What are the estimated quantities of digested Class B biosolids or partially digested 

biosolids?   

 

See “ATTACHMENT C” “GRU Biosolids Generation Estimates Updated 1/28/15”    

 

6. Is there a difference in biosolids quantities during non-school months? 

 

There is some seasonal variation in quantity of biosolids to handle, but there is not a 

significant variation due to school schedules.  Also, maintenance operations and storm 
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events typically occur over the summer months and may require Responder flexibility in 

the handling of material as stated in the RFP.  

 

7. What happens if GRU doesn’t produce 20% cake solids? 

 

See Question #4 response. 

 

8. What is the quantity and specification of the trailers that the Responder must supply? 

 

Trailer dimensions and dewatering bay are included in this Addendum as 

“ATTACHMENT D”.  See figure and description below. 

The respondent shall include in their proposal trailers that are compatible with the new 

dewatering building. The Owner will pull the trailers in and out of the dewatering building 

with the Owner’s own yard truck.  

A typical loading cycle is as follows:   

a. GRU will pull an empty trailer from the drop-off area to the dewatering facility bay using 

its yard truck.  The tare weight of the empty trailer will be taken on the scale.   

b. GRU will load the trailer with a screw conveyor that has five drop gates.  The number of 

drop gates used will depend on the length of the respondent’s trailer.  The weight will be 

monitored as the truck fills and a ticket will be generated which will be furnished to the 

vendor’s driver for documentation.   

c. GRU will then pull the loaded trailer out of the bay with its yard truck and park it in the 

pick-up area.   

d. The vendor will drop off an empty trailer in the trailer drop-off area and will hook up to 

and haul off the full trailer from the pick-up area.   

The key trailer dimensions are presented below and on the attached PDF file: 

13’-6”: maximum trailer height 

13’-0”: clear width open thru roll-up door 

26’-0”: minimum trailer length (use 3 drop gates) 

48’-0”: maximum trailer length (use 5 drop gates) 

It is estimated that 3 to 4 trailer loads per day will be hauled 5 days per week.  

Responder must provide a sufficient number of trailers to ensure uninterrupted loading, 

staging and hauling.  We anticipate that this will include 2 trailers to be staged in the two 

loading bays with one spare empty trailer available in the drop off area.    

 

9. Describe the process by which a contractor will come in and hook up to the trailer.  Does 

it include a scale and the ticketing booth?  How will the trailers be staged?  

 

See Question #8 response.  

 

10. Will the weight tickets show partially digested or digested? 
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The weight tickets will document the weight of each load of biosolids and not the quality 

of biosolids.  The quality of biosolids GRU will provide will be as per the contract with the 

selected vendor. 

 

11. Can GRU allow hauling outside of the 7 am to 7 pm period described in the RFP? 

 

GRU staff will only be available for staging of trailers during the 7 am to 7 pm period.  

However, GRU will consider some variance outside that time period for pick-up of loaded 

trailers and drop off of empty trailers by the selected vendor.  Also note there are school 

zones on Tower Road that at times during the day, can increase transit times.   

 

12. What happens if the centrifuges are down? 

 

If one of the two centrifuges is out of service, GRU will operate the remaining centrifuge 

additional hours and/or days as necessary to maintain steady operation.  Though not 

expected, in the event both centrifuges are out of service, GRU may temporarily store 

biosolids while repairing the units. The Contractor would have to suspend hauling during 

the repair period and haul extra loads at a later date after the centrifuges are back in 

service. 

 

13. Are volumes based on wet tons or 20% solids? 

 

Per the RFP, pricing should be on a $/wet ton basis.   

 

14. Can Respondents provide pricing for hauling away and disposing of the materials from 

the bar screens? 

 

Materials from the bar screens are not part of the RFP.  We are not accepting unsolicited 

proposals. 

 

15. How many plants are involved in this process? 

 

GRU has two Water Reclamation Facilities:  Kanapaha and Main Street.  See Section 

2.0 GRU Background in the RFP.   

 

16. How is the screening at Main Street WRF and KWRF? 

 

The dewatering facilities include new grinders installed upstream of the centrifuges.  In 

addition, KWRF screening will be upgraded in 2016.     

 

17. Do the Respondents have access to the farm? 

 

A non-mandatory site visit to the KWRF (3901 SW 63rd Blvd, Gainesville, FL 32608 – 

meet at Office) is scheduled for Monday February 2, 2015 at 2:00 pm.  Also, anyone can 

view the current biosolids land application site farm from outside the property boundary.  
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The farm is located at 19110 SW Archer Rd, Archer, FL which is on Archer Rd (Hwy 24) 

west of the City of Archer and across from the Alachua County Landfill. 

 

18. Are wet tons based on 20% cake solids?   

 

The wet tons are based on the estimated 20% cake. 

 

19. Are there savings for no digestion vs digestion? 

 

The cost savings to GRU for partial digestion (aerated holding) as compared to Class B 

digestion (pathogen reduction) is $186,000 per year in 2016.  This savings is projected 

to escalate by 2% per year.  GRU will account for the projected savings for partial 

digestion when it evaluates the proposals. 

 

As described in the RFP, Proposers should provide pricing on a $/wet ton basis and 

indicate whether this price is based on receiving partially digested (aerated holding) or 

Class B digested (pathogen reduction) material.  If a vendor has the ability to accept 

either material, please provide a separate price for each of the two alternatives.   

 

20. Will trucks be labeled as Class B etc.? 

 

See Question #10 response.   

 

21. Does the headworks clean plastics from the biosolids? 

 

Yes, the headworks remove plastics from the raw wastewater.  As described in Question 

#16 response, upgrades to the headworks screening at KWRF are underway which will 

further improve the effectiveness.  The improvements are expected to be completed in 

2016.    

 

ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS SUBMITTED AFTER PRE-PROPOSAL MEETING 

1. As a condition of a proposal, would GRU be able to switch the current disposition 

location of MSWRF liquids from KWRF (approx. 9 mi / 18 min) to another site that could 

accept the material (approx. 16 mi / 24 min)? 

 

Yes, GRU would consider an alternative haul location, but would require a price based 

on $/WT @ 20% even though your facility would be receiving biosolids from MSWRF 

that are only thickened (~ 5.5%).  GRU would have to account for the additional costs 

associated with the increased haul distance.  

2. Would GRU allow for mobile biosolid treatment equipment to be used in a proposal and 

not be in violation of Section 5 under the RFP?   

 

No. 
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3. If the MSWRF liquid is not dewatered at KWRF, can GRU quantify the credit (in $ / yr., $ 

/ wet ton, $ / dry ton) for not having to dewater the biosolids as this will result in a 

reduction in energy consumption, polymer usage, labor, and maintenance? 

 

We will consider the estimated cost savings from reduced energy consumption and 

polymer use associated with not dewatering the MSWRF biosolids. 

 

4. What is the energy, etc. credit for accepting undigested material ($ / yr.)? 

 

See Question #19 in Pre-Proposal Questions. 

 

5. Will GRU accept skid-mounted equipment that is portable and not permanently installed 

on site to process biosolids to Class A/AA? Portable skid to be ideally located within 

and/or adjacent to the dewatering facility: 

 
No. 

 
a. Would this be acceptable for the term of the contract? 

 
No 

 
b. Per the evaluation criteria would an offsite facility receive preference to onsite portable 

equipment? 

 
RFP states no facilities’ onsite. 

 
c. Would this be acceptable as an interim plan until an offsite facility is permitted? 

 
No 

 
6. If portable equipment were accepted; would the successful bidder be allowed to operate 

the equipment onsite and/or would GRU consider operating the equipment if no 

additional staffing was required (discount offered in bid pricing and training/assistance 

was included in the scope of supply for GRU operations)? 

 
No  
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_________________________ 

Dana L. Gauthier, C.P.M. 
Senior Buyer 

Utilities Purchasing 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
Each Proposer shall acknowledge receipt of his Addendum No. 1 by his signature below, and 
shall attach a copy of this Addendum to his response or by filling in the Addenda section in the 
RESPONDENT’s CERTIFICATION FORM located in the FORMS Section.  
 
CERTIFICATION BY RESPONDENT: 
The undersigned acknowledges receipt of this Addendum No. 1. The Response submitted is in 
accordance with the information, instructions, and stipulations set forth herein. 
 
   Respondent:  _______________________________________ 
  
   By:         _______________________________________ 
 
 
Appended hereto and part of Addendum No. 1 is: 
 
ATTACHMENT A - Pre Proposal Power Point Presentation 
ATTACHMENT B - Pre-Proposal Mandatory Sign-in Sheet  
ATTACHMENT C - GRU Biosolids Generation Estimates Updated 1/28/15 
ATTACHMENT D - CH2MHILL Dewatering Building Section Diagram  
 
 



 

Request for Proposals  

Pre-Bid Meeting for 

Transportation and Reuse 

or Disposal of Dewatered 

Biosolids 
Water & Wastewater Engineering Department   

Gainesville Regional Utilities 

 

1 

January 21st, 2015 

ATTACHMENT A



INTRODUCTION 
• Tony Cunningham – GRU Director of 

Engineering Services (Project 
Representative) 

• Rick Hutton – Supervising Engineer 

• Paul Davis – Engineer 4  

• Dana Gauthier – GRU Senior Buyer 
(Purchasing Representative) 

Attending the Pre-Proposal Meeting is 
mandatory in order for GRU to Accept a 
Bid.  Please Sign in! 
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RFP Schedule of Events 
• Due date – February 5, 2015 @ 2:00 pm 

• Last Day for Questions – January 28, 2015 @ 
5:00 pm 

• Last Addenda for Answering questions  - 
February 2, 2015 

• Evaluation of the Proposals – February  6-20, 
2015 

• Oral Discussions- TBD if necessary 

• Intent to Award -  April 2, 2015 

• City Commission Approval – April 2, 2015 

ATTACHMENT A



Proposal Response 

Instructions  
• Communication and Addenda will be 

posted on the GRU Website only. It is the 
Respondent’s responsibility to check for 
any addenda or communication.  
http://www.gru.com/ourCommunity/content
/biosolidsrecycling.aspx 

 

• All questions must be in writing and 
directed to the Purchasing Representative 
Dana Gauthier. gauthierdl@gru.com 

 

ATTACHMENT A

http://www.gru.com/ourCommunity/content/biosolidsrecycling.aspx
http://www.gru.com/ourCommunity/content/biosolidsrecycling.aspx
mailto:gauthierdl@gru.com


Proposal Response 

Instructions  

• Examination of Solicitation Documents 

and Work Site 

– Construction on-going 

ATTACHMENT A



Proposal Response Instructions  

• 5.0 Minimum Threshold Criteria -  

• Response Submittals 

• Everything we are asking for is located in the Response 
Submittals. 
– Local Preference Ordinance – purchases exceed $50,000, 

possess City Occupational Tax License issued over 6 
months prior to response submission.  5 points 

– Living Wage Ordinance does apply – goods and services 
over $100,000 (11.4663 per hour covered with HB and 12.72 
per hour to covered who do not receive HB. 

– Company Back ground (Financial Statements) – Separate 
envelope marked with “Company Name” and “Confidential”.  
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Proposal Response 

Instructions  

• Deviations From Specifications 

• 1 original, 4 paper copies and 1 

electronic copy in a sealed envelope. 

• Multiple proposals  will be accepted. 

Each proposal must be submitted in its 

entirety in its own separate envelope.   
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Proposal Response 

Instructions  

• Terms of Award – Best evaluated based 

on cost 45%, Risk 20%, Flexibility 

20%,Enhanced Environmental Benefits 

5%, Local Economic Benefits 5% and 

Local Preference 5%. 
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Evaluation Procedures 
14.0  Response Evaluation Procedures 

Step 1 - 4 members will screen proposals for the 
minimum requirements. Notification will be given in 
writing to those non-responsive. 

Step 2 - Proposals left will be evaluated in 
accordance with the Evaluation Criteria listed under 
the Terms of Award. 

Step 3 -  If needed, Discussions will be conducted for 
those responses that need clarification. 

Step 4 - The ranking will be finalized and 
recommendation for award will be given and City 
Commission Approval will be obtained.     
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LOBBYING 
• City prohibits communication to or with any 

department, employee, or agent evaluating 
or considering the proposals during the 
submission process, except as authorize 
by the contact person. During this blackout 
period, no person may lobby, on behalf of 
a competing party in a particular 
procurement process, city officials or 
employees except the purchasing 
designated staff.  Violation will result in 
disqualification.  

ATTACHMENT A



Liquidated Damages 

• In the event the Respondent is unable 

to receive and reuse or dispose of 

GRU’s biosolids, the Respondent will be 

required to pay all of GRU’s costs for 

Transport and reuse or disposal by 

another means which GRU will 

determine at its sole discretion. 

ATTACHMENT A



Questions on Instructions? 

12 

ATTACHMENT A
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Dewatering Facilities 
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RFP Highlights 
 

• Process is permitted at other sites  

• Must be able to attain permits and receive 

biosolids by December 1st, 2015 
– May include interim plan 

• Contract Duration – preference for shorter 

duration 

• Ability to receive biosolids 4-5 days/week, 52 

weeks/year 

• No processing facilities to be constructed on-site 
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RFP Highlights 
 

• GRU will produce 20% solids cake 

• GRU digestion alternatives include: 
– Digested class B biosolids (meets pathogen reduction, but not necessarily vector 

attraction criteria) 

– Partially digested biosolids (aerated storage) 

– Addenda will clarify the estimated wet tons of biosolids for each of the digestion 

conditions through 2035 
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Questions? 

17 
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